

Violations Against PRCS Medical Missions Since October 7th, 2023 West Bank and Jerusalem

Until 29/09/2024 Including Jerusalem (20:00 pm update)

Resulting (known) deaths among the wounded and the sick: 14

Resulting deaths among EMTs: 2

Total numbers since October 7th until present:

Incidents	339
Violations	784
Denials	155
Delays	132
Patient Harassments	204
Crew Harassments	165
Vehicle Attacks	124
Injured Crews	23
Attacks on Facilities (Buildings and Centers)	4

War Context: October Violations:

Incidents	58
Violations	104
Denials	23
Delays	26
Patient Harassments	15
Crew Harassments	24
Vehicle Attacks	16
Attacks on Facilities (Buildings and Centers)	0



Total Patient Deaths:1

Total Staff Injured: 6

No	Date	Location	Violation Description	Category and Applicable IHL
1	Oct. 7th	Huwwara Checkpoint, Nablus	The ambulance crew (3 people) were denied movement through the Huwwara checkpoint and were detained for over half an hour. The crew had to resort to Awarta checkpoint which was closed with an iron gate. After over an hour and coordination efforts, the crew were granted passage.	Delayed Movement
2	Oct. 7th	Awarta Checkpoint, Nablus	The ambulance crew was delayed for 20 minutes while transporting a live ammunition casualty	Delayed Movement
3	Oct. 7th	Beit Furik, Nablus	The ambulance crew was delayed for 12 minutes at Beit Furik checkpoint on the way to Beit Furik	Delayed Movement
4	Oct. 7th	Beit Furik, Nablus	The ambulance crew was delayed for over 20 minutes at Beit Furik checkpoint on the way to Beit Furik	Delayed Movement
5	Oct. 8th	Huwwara Checkpoint, Nablus	The ambulance crew was delayed for over 28 minutes at Huwwara checkpoint	Delayed Movement
6	Oct. 8th	Bethlehem	On the way to Beit Fajjar village, the Israeli Occupation forces detained the ambulance vehicle for over 25 minutes	Delayed Movement
7	Oct. 8th	Nablus	On the way to Qaryut, the ambulance crew's movement was impeded for a few minutes , then they were stopped and the ambulance vehicle was inspected on Ainabus roundabout. (Total impediment time: 10 minutes)	Delayed Movement Crew Harassment
8	Oct. 8th	Awarta Checkpoint, Nablus	The ambulance crew's return to the Nablus ambulance center from Beita was blocked due to the closure of Awarta checkpoint in absence of any soldiers. Despite coordination with the Red Cross, the checkpoint was not opened, forcing the crew to return to the Beita ambulance Center	Denied Access



9	Oct. 8th	Nablus	While transporting a live ammunition neck casualty, the ambulance crew could not pass through Awarta checkpoint due to its closure. After contacting the Red Cross, the crew was asked to head to the Huwwara checkpoint where the crew was delayed for a few minutes before opening the checkpoint for their passage. (Total impediment time: 10 minutes)	Delayed Movement
10	Oct. 8th	Beita, Nablus	While attempting to return to Nablus after confrontations between Palestinians and Israeli Occupation forces ended in Beita, the Occupation forces blocked the ambulance crew's movement by using laser lights and firing pre-emptive bullets, forcing them to go back to Beita.	Denied Access
11	Oct. 8th	Ramallah, near Beit El illegal settlement outpost	The Israeli Occupation forces directly targeted the ambulance vehicle by firing live ammunition despite the fact that the vehicle was parked in a safe place. The live bullet penetrated and damaged the body of the vehicle.	Attack on Vehicle
12	Oct. 9th	Nablus	On the way to transport a casualty—a 60-year-old man with kidney disease—at Huwwara checkpoint, the ambulance vehicle was stopped and inspected by the Israeli Occupation forces. The 2-man crew was also detained for 10 minutes . After coordinating with the Red Cross and being delayed another 15 minutes , the casualty was received and transported.	Crew Harassment Delayed Movement
13	Oct. 9th	Ramallah	On the way to cover confrontations in Mazraa' Gharbiya village, the Israeli Occupation forces stopped the ambulance vehicle and ordered the crew to step out. The crew was subsequently beaten and violently laid on the ground before the occupation confiscated their phones and threatened to kill them. Finally, the crew was detained for half an hour and their phones remained confiscated.	Crew Harassment Delayed Movement
14	Oct. 9th	Jalameh checkpoint, Jenin	The Israeli Occupation forces directly targeted the ambulance vehicle by firing live ammunition despite the fact that the vehicle was parked in a safe place. The live bullet penetrated and damaged the body of the	Attack on Vehicle



			vehicle.	
15	Oct. 9th	Huwwara, Nablus	While covering the escalations in Huwwara, a band of Israeli settlers attacked the ambulance vehicle by throwing rocks, leading to damages to the exterior body of the vehicle. The Israeli Occupation forces also denied the crew from covering the events in the area.	Attack on Vehicle Denied Access
16	Oct. 9th	Nablus	The ambulance crew's movement was impeded on their way to aid a case of sickness.	Delayed Movement
17	Oct. 10th	Bethlehem	On the entrance to Beit Fajjar village, the Israeli Occupation forces detained an ambulance vehicle for 50 minutes. Despite the fact that there was a kidney patient in the vehicle, the crew was denied movement.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
18	Oct. 10th	Jalameh Checkpoint, Jenin	The ambulance crew was delayed for 10 minutes on their way to Jalameh checkpoint.	Delayed Movement
19	Oct. 10th	Ramallah	The Israeli Occupation forces directly targeted the ambulance vehicle by firing live ammunition near the entrance of Al-Bireh, leading to damages to the body of the vehicle.	Attack on Vehicle
20	Oct. 11th	Nablus	The Israeli Occupation forces impeded the arrival of the ambulance crew to Nablus to tend to a 4-year-old girl who choked on gas.	Delayed Movement
21	Oct. 12th	Bethlehem	The Israeli Occupation forces denied the ambulance crew access to Beit Ummar village on their way to Bethlehem.	Denied Access
22	Oct. 12th	Hebron	On their way to tend to a casualty, the Israeli Occupation forces denied the crew's movement, threatened the crew with weapons, and forced them out of the vehicle for inspection.	Crew Harassment Denied Access
23	Oct. 12th	Qalqilya	The Israeli Occupation forces denied the ambulance vehicle's access to Qalqilya Hospital, fired pre-emptive bullets in the air as a means of threat, and attacked the crew.	Denied Access Crew Harassment
24	Oct. 12th	Qalqilya	The Israeli Occupation forces denied the crew's access to tend to casualties in Jayyus village.	Denied Access



25	Oct. 13th	Salfit	The Israeli Occupation forces denied the ambulance vehicle's movement to Salfit while transporting a pregnant woman from Bidia village.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
26	Oct. 13th	Nablus	The ambulance vehicle was detained and the crew's movement was denied at Beit Furik checkpoint, on the way to cover escalations.	Crew Harassment Denied Access
27	Oct. 13th	Nablus	The Israeli Occupation forces denied the crew's access to the main street in Huwwara. Despite coordinating with the Red Cross, the denial was sustained, forcing the crew to resort to another road to reach Usrin village.	Denied Access
28	Oct. 13th	Nablus	On their way from Nablus ambulance center to Beit Furik village to cover the escalation in the area, the Israeli Occupation forces detained the crew at the entrance of the village and delayed its movement for an hour.	Crew Harassment Denied Access
29	Oct. 13th	Tulkarm	While the ambulance crew evacuated casualties from a private car, the Israeli Occupation forces opened fire in the area as the crew transported the final casualty suffering from a severe head injury. The crew had to shield themselves behind vehicles until the shooting ceased, enabling them to finally evacuate.	Crew Harassment Patient Harassment Denied Access
30	Oct. 13th	Tulkarm	The Israeli Occupation forces opened fire at the ambulance crew (while standing in a safe area to cover the events) which led to a bullet penetrating the backdoor of the ambulance vehicle.	Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
31	Oct. 14th	Nablus	Upon arrival to transport a live ammunition casualty at Huwwara checkpoint, the Israeli Occupation forces denied the ambulance crew access to the casualty and pointed their weapons at them. They were then ordered to reverse and informed that the Occupation army's ambulance would deal with the casualty.	Denied Access Crew Harassment Patient Harassment
32	Oct. 14th	Hebron	The Occupation forces denied the ambulance crew's movement and pointed their weapons at them. They also threatened to open fire if they did not evacuate the area.	Denied Access Crew Harassment



33	Oct. 17th	Nablus	The Israeli Occupation forces stopped the ambulance vehicle in Al-Quds Street and opened all of its doors for inspection. One of the volunteers in the ambulance was forced to take his bulletproof vest and to step out of the vehicle. The crew's movement was denied and they were diverted to another street.	Crew Harassment Denied Access
34	Oct. 18th	Nablus	On the way to cover confrontations in Madma and Jammain area, Israeli settlers had spread nails down the road leading to the wheel's dysfunction and inability to continue the road.	Attack on Vehicle
35	Oct. 18th	Ramallah FATAL CASE	The ambulance crew's movement was denied on their way to transport a bleeding man . Due to this denial, the man bled to death.	Patient Harassment MURDER
36	Oct. 19th	Beita, Nablus	On the ambulance crew's way to aid a case of diabetes in Beita, the Israeli Occupation forces stopped the ambulance vehicle near the house and denied the crew's entry to the house. After coordinating with the Red Cross, the crew was granted access. Total impediment time: 15 minutes	Delayed Movement
37	Oct. 19th	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	On the ambulance crew's way to tend to casualties at Nur Shams Refugee Camp, the Israeli Occupation forces stopped and detained the ambulance vehicle with its crew , took the crew's IDs and delayed them for 17 minutes.	Crew Harassment Delayed Movement
38	Oct. 19th	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	While transporting a kidney disease patient during an Israeli raid on Nur Shams Refugee Camp, the Israeli Occupation forces detained the ambulance, its crew, and the patient. The patient was taken into the army's vehicle and interrogated for around 40 minutes (despite being informed that he is ill). After releasing the patient, the ambulance was granted movement.	Crew Harassment Patient Harassment Delayed Movement
39	Oct. 19th	Nur Shams Refugee Camp,	While transporting a man with a severe head injury from Nur Shams Refugee Camp, the ambulance crew was detained at the entrance	Denied Access Patient



		Tulkarm	of the camp and the Israeli Occupation forces transported the man from the ambulance vehicle to the army's vehicle. The Occupation Forces subsequently denied the ambulance crew from further aiding the man.	Harassment
40	Oct. 19th	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	While covering the confrontations in Nur Shams Refugee Camp, ambulance vehicles were detained at the entrance of the camp and the ambulance crew's cards were taken for inspection. The ambulance crews were also given specific instructions on where to enter and exit the camp. After this delay, the ambulance crews were granted entry to the camp.	Crew Harassment Delayed Movement
41	Oct. 19th	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	On their way to Nur Shams Refugee Camp, the ambulance crew's movement was impeded and the Israeli Occupation forces blocked the road the ambulance was using. Afterwards, the army vehicle directly targeted and crashed into the ambulance, leading to damages on the exterior body of the vehicle.	Delayed Movement Attack on Vehicle
42	Oct. 19th	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	On their way to transport a fainted patient at Nur Shams Refugee Camp, the Israeli Occupation forces detained the ambulance crew, ordered them to step out of the car, and confiscated their phones. The Occupation forces also used the crew as human shields for about 73 minutes.	Crew Harassment Delayed Movement
43	Oct. 20th	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	During a raid on Nur Shams Refugee Camp, one of our ambulances was called to tend to a woman in labor. The ambulance crew coordinated with the Red Cross and the crew was instructed to take specific roads. The Israeli Occupation forces detained and inspected the crew's IDs at 4 different locations for 15 minutes each time. After being granted access to enter the camp, its internal roads were closed, blocking access to the patient who had to meet the crew.	Crew Harassment Delayed Movement Patient Harassment



44	Oct. 20th	Khader Village, Bethlehem	Upon arrival to transport a bleeding man, the ambulance vehicle was detained under gun threats by the Israeli Occupation forces. Only one of the ambulance crew members was allowed to tend to the patient to perform first aid. The ambulance vehicle remained detained for 30 minutes before the Occupation forces granted the crew access to transport the patient to the hospital.	Crew Harassment Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
45	Oct. 21st	Bethlehem	The ambulance vehicle was denied access to tend to a gunshot casualty by the Israeli Occupation forces. The Occupation army's vehicle also attempted to crash into the ambulance vehicle as a means of intimidation.	Denied Access Attack on Vehicle Patient Harassment
46	Oct. 21st	Bethlehem	On the way to transport a patient, the ambulance vehicle was detained for over an hour at Al-Nishnash checkpoint. After receiving the patient, the Israeli Occupation denied the ambulance access to Bethlehem and delayed the crew with the patient for over 2 hours.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
47	Oct. 23rd	Jalazon Refugee Camp, Ramallah	The Israeli Occupation forces denied the ambulance vehicle access to Jalazon Refugee Camp, threatened the crew with guns, and forced the crew to leave.	Crew Harassment Denied Access
48	Oct. 25th	Qalandya Refugee Camp, Ramallah	On the way to tend to casualties, the ambulance vehicle was detained for 50 minutes and threatened with guns before being granted access to the camp by the Israeli Occupation forces.	Crew Harassment Delayed Movement
49	Oct. 26th	Tayaseer, Tubas	The ambulance vehicle was targeted by Israeli Occupation forces' rubber bullets, leading to exterior body damage to the vehicle.	Attack on Vehicle
50	Oct. 26th	Tubas	While transporting a live ammunition casualty, Israeli Occupation forces directly targeted the back of the ambulance vehicle with two live bullets.	Attack on Vehicle



51	Oct. 27th	Jenin	Upon stepping out of the ambulance vehicle to transport a casualty, the ambulance crews were faced with random and heavy gunfire by the Israeli Occupation forces. The left side of the ambulance vehicle was hit with two bullets.	Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
52	Oct. 27th	Beit Ummar Checkpoint, Hebron	The Israeli Occupation forces closed Beit Ummar checkpoint with closing gates, denying access to Beit Ummar and forcing the ambulance vehicle to return to its center.	Denied Access
53	Oct. 27th	Qalqilya	While covering the escalations at the northern entrance of Qalqilya, the ambulance vehicle was parked in a safe place; the Israeli Occupation forces used the ambulance vehicle as a shield. This led to an impediment on the crew's movement for over 15 minutes.	Crew Harassment/ Vehicle Shield Delayed Movement
54	Oct. 29th	Askar Refugee Camp, Nablus	On the way to transport a live ammunition casualty near Askar Club, the Israeli Occupation forces' army vehicle attacked the ambulance vehicle, launching into it and leading to exterior body damages to the front of the ambulance vehicle.	Attack on Vehicle
55	Oct. 29th	Askar Refugee Camp, Nablus	On the way to transport a casualty, the Israeli Occupation forces opened fire at the ambulance vehicle and denied the crew's access to the casualty.	Attack on Vehicle Denied Access Patient Harassment
56	Oct. 30th	Dheisheh Refugee Camp, Bethlehem	The Israeli Occupation forces opened fire at the ambulance vehicle, denying the crew access to tend to a live ammunition casualty.	Attack on Vehicle Denied Access Patient Harassment
57	Oct. 31st	Nablus	While performing first aid on a casualty, the Israeli Occupation forces attacked and beat the ambulance crew. The Occupation forces also delayed the ambulance vehicle to inspect the casualty's ID.	Crew Harassment Delayed Movement



				Patient Harassment
58	Oct. 31st	Yamoon Village, Jenin	On the way to transport a woman in labor from the entrance of Yamoon village to the Jenin Governmental Hospital, the Israeli Occupation forces impeded the movement of the ambulance vehicle by closing multiple roads, diverting the movement of the vehicle. On the way to Al-Amal Hospital, the Israeli Occupation's army vehicle attacked the ambulance vehicle, threatened the crew and patient with guns, inspected the vehicle, forcing the crew to transport the woman to Ibn Sina Hospital.	Delayed Movement Attack on Vehicle Patient Harassment Crew Harassment

58 Incidents, 104 Violations



November Violations:

Incidents	49
Violations	122
Denials	23
Delays	18
Patient Harassments	26
Crew Harassments	31
Vehicle Attacks	24
Attacks on Facilities (Buildings and Centers)	0

Total Patient Deaths:2 Total Staff Injured: 2

No.	Date	Location	Violation Description	Category and Applicable IHL
1	Nov. 2nd	Deir Sharaf, Nablus	On their way to evacuate casualties that included children inside a bakery, the ambulance vehicle and crew were denied access to the casualties by the Israeli Occupation forces and were directly targeted by gas bombs and sound bombs.	Denied Access Attack on Crews Patient Harassment
2	Nov. 2nd	Deir Sharaf, Nablus	On their way to cover the confrontations in Deir Sharaf, the Israeli Occupation forces directly targeted the ambulance vehicle with gas bombs and denied the crew access to the location of the confrontations.	Attack on Vehicle Denied Access
3	Nov. 6th	Yabad, Jenin	On their way to tend to a live ammunition casualty near Yabad village, the Israeli Occupation forces prevented the ambulance	Denied Access



			crew from performing first aid care on the casualty. The Occupation forces subsequently turned the ambulance vehicle off, forced the ambulance crew to turn the vehicle siren off, and confiscated the ambulance telephone. The Occupation forces proceeded to brutally beat the ambulance crew, cursed at them, and used the ambulance vehicle as a shield to evacuate the area. Finally, the ambulance crew were forced to transport the casualty to his house for inspection by the Occupation forces while keeping the ambulance doors open.	Crew Harassment Patient Harassment
4	Nov. 6th	Beit Fajjar, Bethlehem	On the way to transport a live ammunition casualty in Beit Fajjar, the ambulance crew found the gate to northern Bethlehem closed. After coordination with the Red Cross, another ambulance vehicle was sent, delaying the ambulance from reaching the casualty for 15 minutes.	Delayed Movement
5	Nov. 9th	Beit Furik, Nablus	Upon arrival at the checkpoint near Beit Furik, the Israeli Occupation forces impeded the entry of the ambulance vehicle to transport a casualty. After coordination with the Red Cross, the ambulance was granted access.	Delayed Movement
6	Nov. 9th	Balata Refugee Camp, Nablus	The Israeli Occupation forces directly targeted the ambulance vehicle by opening fire and denied the ambulance crew access to transport a casualty.	Attack on Vehicle Denied Access Patient Harassment
7	Nov. 9th	Aneen, Jenin	On their way to Aneen village to transport a casualty in a critical condition, the Israeli Occupation delayed the ambulance crew for around 15 minutes by blocking the ambulance vehicle's way and forcing the ambulance driver to step out of the vehicle.	Delayed Movement
8	Nov. 9th	Jenin Refugee Camp, Jenin	On their way to transport a casualty in Jenin Refugee Camp, the ambulance vehicle was detained, inspected, and the ambulance crew's IDs were taken for inspection by the Israeli Occupation forces. Additionally, the Occupation forces humiliated the ambulance	Delayed Movement Crew Harassment



			crew by cursing.	
9	Nov. 9th	Jenin, Refugee Camp, Jenin	On their way to transport a woman in labor in Jenin Refugee Camp through coordination with the liaison, the Israeli Occupation forces pushed the ambulance vehicle through their army vehicle and denied the ambulance crew access to transport the woman in labor.	Attack on Vehicle Denied Access Patient Harassment
10	Nov. 9th	Jenin Refugee Camp, Jenin	On their way to transport a casualty, the Israeli Occupation forces denied the ambulance's passage and targeted the ambulance vehicle with 2 bullets, leading to external damages to the vehicle.	Denied Access Attack on Vehicle
11	Nov. 9th	Jenin Refugee Camp, Jenin	On their way to transport casualties, the Israeli Occupation forces directly targeted the ambulance vehicle with live ammunition. One of the ambulance crew member's back was penetrated by the live bullet and the ambulance driver sustained a shoulder injury from bullet fragments.	Attack on Vehicle Attack on Crew
12	Nov. 9th	Balata Refugee Camp, Nablus	On the way to transport a casualty, the ambulance vehicle was directly targeted with live ammunition and delayed for one hour by the Israeli Occupation forces.	Crew Harassment Delayed Movement
13	Nov. 10th	Aida Refugee Camp, Bethlehem	The Israeli Occupation forces assaulted an ambulance crew member while tending to a casualty in Aida Refugee Camp. They also forced the crew out of the location and confiscated the ambulance vehicle keys.	Crew Harassment Patient Harassment
14	Nov. 14th	Tulkarm Refugee Camp FATAL CASE	While transporting a bullet fragment casualty, the ambulance was stopped by the Israeli Occupation forces for ID inspection. They also forced the wounded man out of the ambulance vehicle and arrested him despite his injury.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
15	Nov. 14th	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	The Israeli Occupation forces delayed impeded the ambulance's movement on the way to cover confrontations, forced its crew out of the vehicle, and performed an inspection.	Delayed Movement Crew Harassment



16	Nov. 14th	Tulkarm	The Israeli Occupation forces opened fire at the ambulance crew while they transported a live ammunition casualty.	Attack on Crew Patient Harassment
17	Nov. 14th	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	The Israeli Occupation delayed the ambulance and inspected the live ammunition casualty being transported.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
18	Nov. 14th	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	The Israeli Occupation attacked the ambulance vehicle, inspected it, and forced the crew to leave despite coordination with the Red Cross. As a result, the ambulance could not transport the casualty which they had been called to aid.	Attack on Vehicle Denied Access Patient Harassment
19	Nov. 14th	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	On their way to transport casualties, the ambulance crew were forced out of the vehicle and detained. The Occupation forces performed an inspection in the car vehicle and denied the crew's access to the location of the casualties.	Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle Denied Access
20	Nov. 14th	Tulkarm	On their way to transport a bullet fragment casualty, the Israeli Occupation denied the crew's access to the location and the crew could not aid the casualty.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
21	Nov. 14th	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	On their way to transport a live ammunition casualty, the Occupation forces opened fire at the ambulance crew and denied their access to the casualty.	Denied Access Crew Harassment Patient Harassment
22	Nov. 17th	Jenin Refugee Camp, Jenin	The ambulance crew and vehicle were inspected by Ibn Sina Hospital. The Israeli Occupation forces also used the ambulance crew as human shields.	Crew Harassment Attack on



				Vehicle
23	Nov. 17th (differe nt ambula nce car)	Jenin Refugee Camp, Jenin	The ambulance crew and vehicle were inspected by Ibn Sina Hospital. The Israeli Occupation forces also used the ambulance crew as human shields.	Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
24	Nov. 19th	Balata Refugee Camp, Nablus	The Israeli Occupation detained the ambulance crew and inspected the ambulance vehicle while the crew attempted to enter Balata Refugee Camp. Afterwards, the Occupation forces denied the ambulance's access to the camp.	Crew Harassment Denied Access
25	Nov. 19th	Balata Refugee Camp, Nablus	On their way to transport a patient from Balata Refugee Camp, the Israeli Occupation forces opened fire at the ambulance vehicle and denied the ambulance crew's access to the camp.	Attack on vehicle Denied Access Patient Harassment
26	Nov. 19th	Balata Refugee Camp, Nablus	On their way to transport a patient from Balata Refugee Camp, the ambulance crew was detained and brutally inspected; the crew members were asked to raise their clothes and underwent bodily search by the Israeli Occupation forces.	Delayed Movement Crew Harassment
27	Nov. 19th	Dheisheh Refugee Camp, Bethlehem	The Israeli Occupation forces denied the ambulance crew's access to a live ammunition casualty and directly targeted the ambulance vehicle by opening fire.	Denied Access Attack on Vehicle Patient Harassment
28	Nov. 19th	Jenin	The ambulance crew was detained and forced out of the ambulance vehicle for the Israeli Occupation forces to perform a brutal inspection of the crew and the vehicle in front of Al-Amal Hospital. Some items in the ambulance vehicle were confiscated as well.	Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle



29	Nov. 21st	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	On their way to cover the confrontations in Tulkarm Refugee Camp, the ambulance crew were denied access to the camp .	Denied Access
30	Nov. 22nd	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	On their way to cover the confrontations in Tulkarm Refugee Camp, the Israeli Occupation forces detained the crew, inspected the ambulance vehicle and denied their access to	Denied Access Crew
			the casualties in the camp.	Harassment Patient
				Harassment
31	Nov 22nd	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	On their way to cover the confrontations in Tulkarm Refugee Camp, the Israeli Occupation forces detained the crew, inspected the	Denied Access
		(different crew)	ambulance vehicle and denied their access to the casualties in the camp.	Crew Harassment
				Patient Harassment
32	Nov. 22nd	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	On their way to cover the confrontations in Tulkarm Refugee Camp, the Israeli Occupation forces detained the crew, inspected the	Denied Access
		(different crew)	ambulance vehicle and denied their access to the casualties in the camp.	Attack on Vehicle
				Crew Harassment
				Patient Harassment
33	Nov. 22nd	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	On their way to cover the confrontations in Tulkarm Refugee Camp, the Israeli Occupation forces delayed the crew's entry to the camp for 35 minutes.	Delayed Movement
34	Nov. 22nd	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	On their way to cover the confrontations in Tulkarm Refugee Camp, the Israeli Occupation forces denied the crew's access to the casualties in the camp.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
35	Nov. 22nd	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	On their way to cover the confrontations in Tulkarm Refugee Camp, the Israeli Occupation forces detained the crew and denied the crew's access to the casualties in the camp.	Crew Harassment Denied Access



	ı	ı		ı
				Patient Harassment
36	Nov. 22nd	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	On their way to cover the confrontations in Tulkarm Refugee Camp, the Israeli Occupation forces denied the crew's access to the casualties in the camp.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
37	Nov. 22nd	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	While transporting a live ammunition casualty due to the Israeli Occupation's airstrike of the Tulkarm Refugee Camp, the ambulance vehicle was stopped and inspected and the casualty was forced out of the ambulance vehicle and arrested. Additionally, the Israeli Occupation forces brutally beat one of the crew volunteers.	Attack on Vehicle Crew Harassment Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
38	Nov. 23rd	Balata Refugee Camp, Nablus	On their way from Nablus to Balata Refugee Camp to transport a critical condition casualty, the ambulance crew was forced out of the ambulance vehicle, detained, and forced to put their hands behind their heads (this lasted 20 minutes). The crew was subsequently denied access and prevented from performing first aid on the casualty.	Crew Harassment Denied Access Patient Harassment
39	Nov. 23rd	Balata Refugee Camp, Nablus	On their way from Nablus to Balata Refugee Camp, the crew was stopped and forced out of the ambulance vehicle. The Israeli Occupation forces also confiscated the crew's phones, forced them to turn the ambulance vehicle off, and 20 minutes later, denied their access to the camp.	Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle Denied Access
40	Nov. 23rd	Balata Refugee Camp FATAL	While transporting a live ammunition casualty (bullet in the head) from Balata Refugee Camp, the Israeli Occupation forces attacked the ambulance vehicle and forced the crew out of the vehicle with their hands up behind their heads. The crew's phones were confiscated and the patient was detained inside the ambulance vehicle in spite of his critical condition. This led to the death of the patient and the crew was further detained for half an	Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle Delayed Movement Patient



			hour.	Harassment
41	Nov. 23rd	Nablus	On their way to transport a casualty, the crew was delayed and their phones were confiscated. The Israeli Occupation also forced the crew to turn off the ambulance vehicle and inspected it.	Crew Harassment Delayed Movement
				Attack on Vehicle
42	Nov. 23rd	Azzun Village, Qalqilya	When leaving the ambulance center to transport a casualty, the Israeli Occupation forces stopped the ambulance vehicle, asked the crew where they were heading, and accompanied the crew to the location of the	Crew Harassment Delayed Movement
			casualty. When the crew received the casualty, the Occupation forces stopped the crew again and made them return, forcing them to take a different road on which they were stopped again. The Occupation forces subsequently turned the ambulance vehicle off, confiscated the keys and the crew's IDs, and forced the casualty out of the ambulance vehicle for 15 minutes before giving the IDs back and allowing them to move.	Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle
43	Nov. 25th	Nablus	On their way to Askar Refugee Camp, the crew's movement was delayed as the Israeli Occupation forces forced the crew out of the ambulance vehicle and inspected the vehicle.	Crew Harassment Delayed Movement Attack on Vehicle
44	Nov. 25th	Ofar Prison, Ramallah	The Israeli Occupation forces directly targeted the ambulance vehicle by launching gas bombs at it, leading to the glass of the backdoor shattering.	Attack on Vehicle
45	Nov. 25th	Al-Bireh, Ramallah	On their way to transport a casualty, the Israeli Occupation forces denied the ambulance crew's access to the casualty and forced them to return despite contacting the Red Cross.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
46	Nov. 26th	Jenin Refugee	On their way to transport casualties due to Israeli airstrikes in the Jenin Refugee Camp	Delayed Movement



		Camp	through coordination with the Red Cross, the crew was inspected and delayed movement in front of Jenin Public Hospital. When the crew entered the camp and evacuated the casualties (one in critical condition due to airstrike fragments), the crew was detained, forced out of the ambulance along with the patient, and inspected (the ambulance vehicle as well) for around 30 minutes. The patient was subsequently arrested as the Israeli forces claimed that the patient had been wanted for arrest.	Patient Harassment Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
47	Nov. 26th	Jenin Refugee Camp	On their way to transport a live ammunition casualty, the ambulance crew's movement was delayed as they were thoroughly inspected and forced to turn the ambulance vehicle off for inspection. After inspection, the crew was granted access but had to maneuver to different roads as the Israeli Occupation had ruined the Jenin Camp's infrastructure. Subsequently, the ambulance crew received and transported the casualty but were detained in front of Ibn Sina Hospital and interrogated along with the patient for over half an hour. They were finally granted access to the hospital but only while accompanied by the army's vehicle.	Delayed Movement Attack on Vehicle Crew Harassment Patient Harassment
48	Nov. 26th	Ofar Prison, Al- Bireh	While covering confrontations, the ambulance vehicle was directly (deliberately) targeted and attacked by the Israeli Occupation's bulldozer, leading to damages to the front of the vehicle.	Attack on Vehicle
49	Nov. 30th	Tulkarm	On their way to cover confrontations in Tulkarm Refugee Camp, the crew's movement was delayed as they were stopped by the Israeli Occupation forces, asked to show their IDs, and forced outside of the ambulance vehicle. The Occupation forces performed a complete and thorough inspection of the vehicle, opening first aid kits and leaving a mess behind. Afterwards, the soldier put the crew's IDs on the army vehicle and told the crew to get them, before letting them go.	Delayed Movement Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle

49 incidents, 120 violations.



December Violations:

Incidents	30
Violations	92
Denials	16
Delays	14
Patient Harassments	22
Crew Harassments	20
Vehicle Attacks	19
Attacks on Facilities (Buildings and Centers)	1

Total Patient Deaths:1

Injured Staff: 2

No.	Date	Location	Violation Description	Category and Applicable IHL
1	Dec. 1st, 2023	Ein Sultan Refugee Camp, Jericho	While covering confrontations in Ein Sultan Refugee Camp in Jericho, the Israeli Occupation forces surrounded the ambulance vehicle with two army vehicles (jeeps), forced the crew out of the ambulance vehicle, performed an inspection inside the ambulance, and forced the crew to leave the location, denying their access to the rest of the casualties.	Denied Access Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle Patient Harassment
2	Dec. 2nd, 2023	Al Murabaa Checkpoint, Nablus	Upon reaching the location to transport a live ammunition casualty, the Israeli Occupation forces denied the ambulance crew access to the casualty at gunpoint and forced them to evacuate the scene, denying first aid to the injured man.	Denied Access Patient Harassment



				Crew Harassment
2	Dec. 4th, 2023	Qalqilya	On their way to transport a casualty near the local police station, the Israeli Occupation forces stopped the ambulance crew at gunpoint and denied their access to the location of the casualty. Despite taking another road to get to the location, the crew could not reach the casualty due to the heavy presence of the Israeli Occupation around the casualties. An hour later, the Occupation forces withdrew from the area and they had arrested all the casualties except for one, who was a police officer.	Denied Access Crew Harassment Patient Harassment
4	Dec. 5th, 2023	Dheisheh Refugee Camp, Bethlehem	On their way to cover confrontations in Dheisheh Refugee Camp, the Israeli Occupation forces delayed the crew's movement by stopping them, forcing them to turn the ambulance vehicle off as well as the ambulance siren. Total impediment time: 10 minutes	Delayed Movement Attack on Vehicle
5	Dec. 6th, 2023	Balata Refugee Camp, Nablus	On their way to transport a casualty in Balata Refugee Camp, the Israeli Occupation forces delayed the crew's movement by detaining the crew and performing an inspection on the ambulance vehicle.	Delayed Movement Attack on Vehicle Crew Harassment
6	Dec. 6th, 2023	Balata Refugee Camp, Nablus	On their way to cover confrontations in Balata Refugee Camp, the Israeli Occupation delayed the crew's movement by stopping the ambulance vehicle to perform an inspection on the vehicle. Total impediment time: 10 minutes	Delayed Movement Attack on Vehicle
7	Dec. 7th, 2023	Jenin Refugee Camp	While transporting a patient with a heart condition from Jenin Refugee Camp after coordination with the military liaison, the crew's movement was delayed as the Israeli Occupation forces inspected the ambulance vehicle for nearly 20 minutes. The Occupation forces also physically beat one of the crew members. The impediment led to the deterioration of the patient's condition.	Delayed Movement Attack on Vehicle Crew Harassment



				Patient Harassment
8	Dec. 8th, 2023	Hebron	On the way to transport a patient, the crew's movement was delayed as the Occupation forces stopped the ambulance vehicle for inspection. When they managed to put the patient on the stretcher, the Occupation forces stopped the ambulance at gunpoint and hit the car as it moved. Subsequently, a vehicle of settlers attempted to crash into the ambulance vehicle at gunpoint. After a while, at Nabi Younis crossroad, 2 occupation soldiers stopped the ambulance at gunpoint; an army vehicle came through and its soldiers cursed at the ambulance crew, hit the ambulance vehicle with their hands, opened the car doors violently, and took pictures of the ambulance driver while threatening him.	Delayed Movement Attack on Vehicle Crew Harassment Patient Harassment
9	Dec. 11th, 2023	Husan Village, Bethlehem	On their way to transport a patient from Husan village, the Occupation forces delayed the crew's movement as they inspected the ambulance vehicle and physically attacked the crew members by beating them.	Delayed Movement Attack on Vehicle Crew Harassment
10	Dec. 12th, 2023	Jenin FATAL CASE	Due to confrontations taking place in the area (near Al-Qadi Mosque in Jenin), the ambulance crew were forced to walk to receive a live ammunition casualty. On the way to transport the casualty, the Occupation forces detained the ambulance vehicle and told the crew that they are not authorized to move until they bring the casualty's ID. This delay led to the martyr of the casualty the moment they arrived at the hospital,	Delayed Movement Attack on Vehicle Crew Harassment Patient Harassment
11	Dec. 12th, 2023	Jenin Old City	During airstrikes on Jenin (Old City), the crew's access to the cases they had been called for was initially impeded. The Occupation forces forced the crew out of the ambulance vehicle to inspect them and they performed an inspection on the vehicle. Afterwards, after receiving casualties near	Delayed Movement Attack on Vehicle Denied



			Jenin Hospital, the ambulance vehicles were inspected again while the crews and patients were detained and humiliated with profanity. Medical equipment in the ambulances was ruined.	Access Patient Harassment Crew Harassment
12	Dec. 12th, 2023	Jenin Old City	While the crew aided casualties of airstrikes in the Old City, there was a casualty next to the Occupation's army vehicles that had been announced to have been martyred. The crew waited 15 minutes, during which the crew and the ambulance vehicle were inspected, before the Occupation forces allowed them to transport the martyr. The crew and the ambulance vehicle were inspected again upon reaching Jenin Public Hospital.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
13	Dec. 12th, 2023	Jenin	On their way to transport a live ammunition casualty in a critical condition (a live bullet had penetrated his thigh and gone out of his waist), the Occupation forces delayed the movement of the ambulance crew. When the crew managed to transport the casualty, he was bleeding profusely and the Occupation forces refused to allow the ambulance to move before inspecting the casualty and taking his clothes.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle
14	Dec. 13th, 2023	Salem Military Checkpoint, Jenin	The ambulance crew received a casualty that had been arrested on December 12th, 2023 near Salem Military Checkpoint. When he was released he suffered from shoulder dislocation and the crew transported the casualty to Al-Amal Hospital. Before they could reach the hospital, the Occupation forces stopped the ambulance, forced the crew and the casualty out of the ambulance vehicle, performed an inspection on the crew and the vehicle, physically beat the casualty and arrested him again.	Denied Access Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle Crew Harassment



15	Dec. 13th, 2023	Jenin	The Occupation forces denied the ambulance crew access to a child suffering from a nervous breakdown, despite coordination with the liaison and the Red Cross. The Occupation forces had also prevented the minor's father from accompanying him and they opened fire at the ambulance vehicle.	Denied Access Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle
16	Dec. 13th, 2023	Jenin	The ambulance crew was informed of casualties due to the Occupation's targeting of a house with bombs. The house had around 14 people living in it, mostly women and children. The Occupation forces opened fire at the ambulance vehicle and denied the crew access to the casualties despite coordination with the liaison and the Red Cross.	Denied Access Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle
17	Dec. 14th, 2023	Yamoon Village, Jenin	On their way to Yamoon village to transport 2 casualties due to beatings by the Israeli Occupation, the Occupation forces stopped the ambulance vehicle, forced the crew to turn the engine off, and prevented the crew from getting in contact with the Red Cross. The ambulance vehicle and the crew were also inspected and detained for around 20 minutes.	Denied Access Attack on Vehicle Patient Harassment Crew Harassment
18	Dec. 14th, 2023	Silat al- Harithiya Village, Jenin	On the way to transport a live ammunition casualty, the Occupation forces delayed the crew's access to the casualty. When the crew managed to transport him, the Occupation forces detained the crew and the casualty for around 35 minutes in spite of coordination with the Red Cross and the liaison.	Delayed Movement Crew Harassment Patient Harassment
19	Dec. 17th, 2023	Nur Shams Refugee Camp,	On their way to transport a patient with a heart condition suffering from shortness of breath and rapid heartbeats in Nur Shams Camp, the	Denied Access



		Tulkarm	Israeli Occupation forces denied the medical mission's access to the patient despite coordination with the Red Cross.	Patient Harassment
20	Dec. 17th 2023	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm (SAME CASE AS 11)	After coordination with the Red Cross for the second time to transport the case described in incident 11 above, the Occupation forces forced the ambulance crew out of the ambulance vehicle to perform an inspection of the vehicle. They also took the crew's IDs and this lasted for 25 minutes. The Occupation forces subsequently arrested volunteer Hani Suwwan and removed his vest with the Red Crescent emblem and gave it to the crew. Hani was blindfolded, handcuffed, and taken to the army jeep. The crew was forced to return, meaning their access to the patient was denied again for the second time.	Denied Access Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle Patient Harassment
21	Dec. 17th, 2023	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	On their way to transport a live ammunition casualty in a critical condition (head casualty) after coordinating with the Red Cross, the Israeli Occupation forces forced the crew out of the ambulance vehicle to perform an inspection and they checked the crew's IDs, subsequently allowing them to pass. Afterwards, at the entrance of the camp, the Occupation forces attacked the crew and ordered the crew to go back, denying their access to the casualty.	Denied Access Attack on Vehicle Crew Harassment Patient Harassment
22	Dec. 17th, 2023	Jayyus Village, Qalqilya	On their way to transport a casualty in Jayyus, the crew was stopped by the Occupation forces twice and was interrogated once. The Occupation forces forced the crew to leave, but they stayed in a safe area until the Occupation forces left the village. When they subsequently went to look for the casualty, they were informed that the Occupation forces had arrested him.	Denied Access Crew Harassment Patient Harassment



23	Dec. 17th, 2023	Beita Village, Nablus	Upon return to the Beita Ambulance Center, the ambulance crew was surprised with the presence of the Occupation forces at the entrance of the Ambulance Center. The Occupation forces had raided the Center and were moving between the floors. The ambulance crew was informed that the Beita Ambulance Center was announced as a closed military zone by the Occupation forces which no one was allowed to approach.	Attack on PRCS Facility
24	Dec. 20th, 2023	Beit Hanoun Roundabout , Hebron	Right before transporting a casualty, the Occupation police screamed at the crew and threatened them at gunpoint to deny their access to the casualty. After being forced to leave the location, the Occupation forces detained the crew for around an hour before the crew could move back to the ambulance center.	Denied Access Patient Harassment Crew Harassment
25	Dec. 26th, 2023	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	On their way to transport a glass fragments casualty in Nur Shams Refugee Camp, the Occupation forces denied the crew's access to the location of the casualty in the camp, despite coordination with the Red Cross. The ambulance volunteers dealt with the casualty on the field and gave her the necessary treatment (to ensure her condition is not exacerbated as they could not transport her).	Denied Access
26	Dec. 26th, 2023 (NEW INSPE CTION TYPE)	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	Upon transporting a female patient suffering from a nervous breakdown, the ambulance's movement was delayed as the Occupation forces brought in a female soldier to inspect the patient before she could enter the ambulance vehicle. After the inspection, the patient was transported to Thabet Thabet Hospital.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment



27	Dec. 27th, 2023	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	óWhile transporting 3 casualties due to the Occupation's airstrikes on Nur Shams Refugee Camp, the Occupation forces attacked the ambulance vehicle and forced everyone out at gunpoint. The crew was forced to turn the ambulance vehicle engine and lights off and the Occupation forces took their IDs and phones. The Occupation forces then forced the crew to sit on the ground and proceeded to use the crew as human shields as they began to beat the casualties that were being transported—the crew has testified to hearing the casualties screaming in agony. An hour later, the crew was allowed to transport the casualties to Thabet Thabet Hospital.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
28	Dec. 27th, 2023	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	On their way to transport martyrs and casualties due to the Occupation's airstrikes on Nur Shams Refugee Camp, the crew was detained for around 25 minutes and was subsequently denied access to the camp.	Denied Access Crew Harassment
29	Dec. 29th, 2023	Al-Faraa Refugee Camp, Tubas	While transporting a live ammunition casualty from Al-Faraa Camp, the Occupation forces besieged the ambulance vehicle, forced the ambulance crew to turn the vehicle engine off, and opened the vehicle's doors. There was a companion with the casualty who was beaten by the Occupation forces. The casualty was forced out of the ambulance vehicle and the Occupation forces removed his IV drip to arrest him. The Occupation forces also humiliated the ambulance crew with swearing and profanity and ended up confiscating their work phones and the oxygen cylinder which the patient needed.	Denied Access Patient Harassment Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
30	Dec. 31st, 2023	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	On their way to transport a patient in Nur Shams Camp, the ambulance crew was denied access to the patient and was sent back. The liaison subsequently contacted the crew and informed them that coordination took place for them to finally transport the casualty. Total impediment time: 2:28 hrs.	Delayed Movement

30 Incidents, 92 Violations



2024 Data

Resulting (known) deaths among the wounded and the sick: 12 Resulting deaths among EMTs: 2

Incidents	192
Violations	469
Denials	95
Delays	74
Patient Harassments	142
Crew Harassments	91
Vehicle Attacks	63
Injured Crews	12
Attacks on Facilities (Buildings and Centers)	3

January 2024:

Incidents	35
Violations	97
Denials	19
Delays	14
Patient Harassments	24
Crew Harassments	21
Vehicle Attacks	19
Attacks on Facilities (Buildings and Centers)	0

Total Injured Crews: 3



No.	Date	Location	Violation Description	Category and Applicable IHL
1	Jan. 2nd, 2024	Azzun	On their way to transport casualties, the Occupation forces denied the crew's access to the area in which the casualties were present and were threatened at gunpoint.	Denied Access Crew Harassment Patient Harassment
2	Jan. 3rd, 2024	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	On their way to transport an elderly patient suffering from abdominal pain in Nur Shams Camp (the Occupation forces had announced the area to be a closed military zone), the Occupation forces performed 2 inspections of the ambulance vehicle and the crews and asked the driver to remove his bulletproof vest. Upon reaching the area in which the patient was present, the Occupation forces fired preemptive bullets and forced the crew to go back, denying them access to the patient. This took place in spite of coordination through the ICRC.	Crew Harassment Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle
3	Jan. 3rd, 2024	Qalqilya	On their way to transport a casualty in a critical condition, the Occupation forces led the crew to the casualty and asked them to perform first aid on him. After performing first aid, the Occupation forces ordered the crew not to transport the casualty. The crew waited around 50 minutes before they were finally allowed to transport him.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
4	Jan. 4th, 2024	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	On their way to transport a kidney dialysis patient, the Occupation forces detained the ambulance vehicle and denied the crew's access to the patient by sending them back despite coordination with the ICRC.	Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle



5	Jan. 4th, 2024	Halhul Village, Hebron	On their way to cover confrontations in Halhul, the ambulance vehicle was directly targeted by the Occupation forces with a rubber bullet leading to the breakage of the front window of the vehicle. The broken glass pieces led to the injury of one of the crew members.	Attack on Vehicle Crew Harassment
6	Jan. 5th, 2024	Balata Refugee Camp, Nablus	On their way to transport a casualty in the camp, the ambulance vehicle was directly targeted as the Occupation forces opened fire at the vehicle to prevent the crew's access to the casualty. The crew ended up taking a different road to reach the casualty and were delayed around 15 minutes.	Delayed Movement Attack on Vehicle
7	Jan. 5th, 2024	Balata Refugee Camp, Nablus	On their way to cover the confrontations taking place in Balata Refugee Camp, the Occupation opened fire at the ambulance vehicle to deny their access to the location.	Denied Access Attack on Vehicle
8	Jan. 9th, 2024	Askar Refugee Camp, Nablus	On their way to transport a casualty inside Askar Camp, the Occupation forces denied the ambulance's access to the location of the confrontations and the casualty despite coordination with the ICRC.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
9	Jan. 9th, 2024	Askar Refugee Camp, Nablus	On their way to transport a casualty inside Askar Camp, the Occupation forces opened fire at the ambulance vehicle to deny the crew's access to the casualty.	Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle
10	Jan. 9th, 2024	Old Askar Refugee Camp, Nablus	On their way to transport a casualty inside Old Askar Camp, the Occupation forces denied the crew's access to the casualty and held one of the ambulance crew members at gunpoint.	Patient Harassment Crew Harassment
11	Jan. 10th, 2024	Nablus	While attempting to transport a man who had been severely beaten by the Occupation forces, the Occupation forces screamed at the ambulance crew and denied their access	Denied Access Crew Harassment



			to the casualty.	Patient Harassment
12	Jan. 10th, 2024	Nablus	On their way to transport a patient, the Occupation forces attacked the ambulance vehicle, forced the crew to turn the vehicle off, and took the crew's IDs for inspection. The Occupation forces then denied the crew's access to the patient.	Denied Access Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle Patient Harassment
13	Jan. 10th, 2024	Nablus	When the crew arrived at the location of a man injured in both of his legs with live ammunition, the crew was surprised to find the Occupation forces brutally beating the man and stepping on his injuries. The Occupation forces subsequently got into their army vehicle to leave and deliberately crashed the front of the ambulance vehicle.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
14	Jan. 11th, 2024	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	On their way to transport a patient with a heart condition in the camp, the Occupation forces delayed the crew's movement for around 40 minutes despite coordination with the ICRC.	Delayed Movement
15	Jan. 13th, 2024	Al-Fara'a Refugee Camp, Tubas	On their way to transport a casualty in the camp, the Occupation forces saw the ambulance vehicle and proceeded to block the road which they were taking. Subsequently, the Occupation forces emerged from their army vehicle and used the ambulance vehicle as a shield as they opened fire. The ambulance crew drove away only for the Occupation forces to follow them, inspect the ambulance vehicle and detain them for 20 minutes.	Delayed Movement Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle



16	Jan. 13th, 2024	Al-Faraa Refugee Camp, Tubas	On their way to deal with a live ammunition casualty, the Occupation forces blocked the ambulance's road, inspected the vehicle, and delayed the crew for 15 minutes.	Delayed Movement Attack on Vehicle
17	Jan. 13th, 2024	Al-Faraa Refugee Camp, Tubas	While transporting a live ammunition casualty from Al-Faraa camp, the Occupation forces stopped the ambulance vehicle, forced the crew to step out and yelled at them, confiscated their phones and performed an inspection. The crew was allowed to move after being detained for 15 minutes.	Delayed Movement Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
18	Jan. 13th, 2024	Arrabeh Village, Jenin	Upon arriving at the location of a live ammunition casualty, the Occupation forces denied the crew's access to provide first aid to the casualty and to transport him despite the fact that he was bleeding.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
19	Jan. 14th, 2024	Beit Hanoun, Hebron	On the crew's way back from dealing with a patient, the Israeli Occupation forces stopped the ambulance vehicle, forced the crew to turn off the engine, performed an inspection and damaged some of their medical equipment.	Attack on Vehicle
20	Jan. 15th, 2024	Jbara Checkpoint, Tulkarm	The crew was directed to Jbara Checkpoint to receive the corpse of a martyr; the Occupation forces made the crew wait for around an hour and 40 minutes before handing the corpse to the crew and allowing them to transport.	Delayed Movement
21	Jan. 17th, 2024	Nablus	On their way to cover confrontations after receiving news of the Occupation's shelling of a civilian vehicle. Upon arriving at the location to search for casualties, the Occupation forces denied the crew's access and opened fire directly at the crew.	Denied Access Crew Harassment



22	Jan. 17th, 2024	Nablus (SAME CASE AS ABOVE, DIFFEREN T VEHICLE AND CREW)	On their way to cover confrontations after receiving news of the Occupation's shelling of a civilian vehicle. Upon arriving at the location to search for casualties, the Occupation forces denied the crew's access and opened fire directly at the crew.	Denied Access Crew Harassment
23	Jan. 18th, 2024	Tulkarm Refugee Camp WOMEN'S RIGHTS ISSUE	On their way to transport a woman in labor from Tulkarm Refugee Camp, the Occupation forces initially denied the crew's access to the woman, and the crew had to discuss with the soldiers to transport her. After coordination with the ICRC, the crew was able to transport the woman to Thabet Thabet Hospital. Total impediment time: 40 minutes	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
24	Jan. 18th, 2024	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	On their way to transport a live ammunition casualty (stomach), the Occupation forces initially denied the crew's access to the casualty. After coordinating with the ICRC, the crew was allowed to transport him to Thabet Thabet hospital. Total impediment time: 40 minutes	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
25	Jan. 18th, 2024	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	On their way to transport a patient suffering from a heart stroke, the Occupation forces initially denied the crew's access to the patient. After coordinating with the ICRC and the liaison, the crew was allowed to transport him to Thabet Thabet hospital. Total impediment time: 1 hour	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
26	Jan. 18th, 2024	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	On their way to transport a live ammunition casualty (stomach) in a critical condition, the Occupation forces delayed the crew's movement, confiscated their phones, and detained the casualty for around 30 mins. After almost 3 hours of delay, the crew transported the casualty to Thabet Thabet hospital.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment Crew Harassment



27	Jan. 18th, 2024	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	On their way to transport a martyr from the camp, the crew was denied access to the location of the martyr and detained for 30 minutes. The Occupation forces also performed an inspection on the ambulance vehicle.	Denied Access Crew Harassment Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle
28	Jan. 18th, 2024	Tulkarm Refugee Camp (SAME CASE AS ABOVE, DIFFEREN T CREW AND VEHICLE)	On their way to transport a martyr from the camp, the crew was denied access to the location of the martyr and detained for 35 minutes. The Occupation forces also performed an inspection on the ambulance vehicle and the crew.	Crew Harassment Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle
29	Jan. 18th, 2024	Tulkarm Refugee Camp (SAME CASE AS ABOVE, DIFFEREN T CREW AND VEHICLE)	On their way to transport a martyr from the camp, the crew was denied access to the location of the martyr and detained for 70 minutes before sending the crew back to the ambulance center.	Denied Access Crew Harassment Patient Harassment



30	Jan. 18th, 2024	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	On their way to transport a sick patient from the camp, the Occupation forces initially denied the access of the crew to the patient. After coordinating with the ICRC, the crew was able to transport the patient. Total impediment time: 1 hour	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
31	Jan. 18th, 2024	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	On their way to transport a patient suffering from a brain stroke from the camp, the Occupation forces initially denied the access of the crew to the patient. After coordinating with the ICRC and the liaison, the crew was able to transport the patient to Thabet Thabet Hospital. Total impediment time: 1 hour	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
32	Jan. 24th, 2024	Ennab Checkpoint, Tulkarm	On their way to transport a casualty from the checkpoint, the Occupation forces initially denied the access of the crew to the patient. After coordinating with the ICRC, the crew was able to transport the patient. Total impediment time: 1hr 38 mins	Denied Access Patient Harassment
33	Jan. 25th, 2024	Fahmeh Village, Jenin	Upon arrival at the location of reported casualties due to beating by the Occupation forces, the Occupation forces stopped the ambulance, forced the crew to step out and to turn the engine off, performed an inspection on the vehicle, insulted the crew with profanity, and severely beat the crew. This led to the crew's denial of access to casualties.	Patient Harassment Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
34	Jan. 27th, 2024	Qalqilya	On their way to transport a casualty, the Occupation forces detained the crew, forced them to turn the ambulance engine off, and denied their access to the casualty.	Denied Access Patient Harassment Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle



35	Jan. 27th, 2024	Azzun Village, Qalqilya	Upon arrival at the entrance of Zarour Medical Center to transport a sick patient, the Occupation forces screamed at the crew, held the crew at gunpoint, and fired bullets in the air to deny their access to the patient.	Patient Harassment Crew Harassment
----	-----------------------	-------------------------------	---	------------------------------------

35 Incidents, 97 Violations



February 2024

Incidents	15
Violations	35
Denials	10
Delays	4
Patient Harassments	10
Crew Harassments	6
Vehicle Attacks	5
Attacks on Facilities (Buildings and Centers)	0

Resulting Patient Deaths: 1

Total injured crews: 3



No	Date	Location	Violation Description	Category and Applicable IHL
1	Feb. 7th, 2024	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	On their way to transport live ammunition casualties, the Occupation forces denied the access of the ambulance crew to the casualties.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
2	Feb. 7th, 2024	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	On their way to transport a live ammunition casualty, the Occupation forces denied the access of the ambulance crew to the casualty.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
3	Feb. 8th, 2024	Deir Sharaf Checkpoint, Nablus	On their way to transport live ammunition casualties on the checkpoint, the Occupation forces fired sound and gas bombs at the ambulance vehicle to deny the crew's access to the casualties.	Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle
4	Feb. 8th, 2024	Deir Sharaf Checkpoint, Nablus	On their way to transport a live ammunition casualty on the checkpoint, the Occupation forces denied the crew's access to the casualty and forced them to leave.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
5	Feb. 9th, 2024	Beit Furik Village, Nablus	The Occupation forces beat a live ammunition casualty inside the ambulance vehicle and denied the crew's access to transport him despite coordination with the ICRC.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
6	Feb. 9th, 2024	Beita Village, Nablus	While covering confrontations in Beita, the Occupation forces forced the crew out of the vehicle and used one of the crew members as a human shield. After coordination with the ICRC, the crew was evacuated from the location.	Denied Access Crew Harassment
7	Feb. 11th, 2024	Battir Village, Bethlehem	While attempting to transport a live ammunition casualty in critical condition, the Occupation forces denied the crew's access and did not allow them to transport the casualty. The Occupation forces also physically beat the crew and insulted them with profanity.	Denied Access Patient Harassment Crew Harassment
8	Feb. 19th,	Burqa Village,	On their way to evacuate injuries in Burqa, the Occupation forces denied the	Denied Access



	2024.	Nablus	ambulance crew's access to the location of the casualties and sent them back.	Patient Harassment
9	Feb. 19th, 2024	Burqa Village, Nablus	On their way back from Burqa, the Occupation forces stopped the crew, ordered them to turn the ambulance engine off, inspected the crew and the vehicle, and screamed at the crew informing them that they needed a permit to enter the area.	Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
10	Feb. 19th, 2024	Burqa Village, Nablus	On their way to Burqa village, the Occupation forces detained the crew for 15 minutes, took their IDs for inspection, and thoroughly inspected the vehicle. The crew was subsequently granted access to the village.	Delayed Movement Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
11	Feb. 19th, 2024	Burqa Village, Nablus	On their way to Burqa village through Sebastya, the Occupation forces initially denied the crew's movement. After coordination with ICRC, the crew was granted access to move to Burqa.	Delayed Movement
12	Feb. 26th, 2024	Nablus	Upon arrival at the location of a casualty, the Occupation forces denied the ambulance crew's access to transport the casualty.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
13	Feb. 27th, 2024	Al-Fara'a Refugee Camp, Tubas (FATAL CASE)	On their way to transport a live ammunition casualty (head) in a critical condition from the camp, the Occupation forces chased the ambulance vehicle with their bulldozer in an attempt to hit the ambulance vehicle. After ordering the crew to turn the ambulance vehicle engine and lights off, the crew had no choice but to walk in order to perform first aid on the casualty. When the crew arrived, the casualty had been found to have bled to death and the crew was not allowed to transport him before an hour passed.	Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle
14	Feb. 28th, 2024	Surra Checkpoint, Nablus	Despite coordination with the liaison for the ambulance crew to transport a casualty from the checkpoint, the Occupation forces brutally beat one of the ambulance crew members along with	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment



			the casualty lying on the ambulance bed. The Occupation forces also harassed them with profanity.	Crew Harassment
15	Feb. 28th, 2024	Al-Hamra Checkpoint, Tubas	On their way from Tubas to Jericho, the ambulance crew was stopped by the Occupation forces and was forced to turn the ambulance engine off. One of the ambulance members was taken far from the ambulance vehicle and humiliated as he was forced to take his clothes off in public. Total impediment time: 15 minutes	Delayed Movement Crew Harassment Vehicle Attack

15 Incidents, 35 Violations



March 2024

Incidents	11
Violations	24
Denials	2
Delays	7
Patient Harassments	9
Crew Harassments	3
Vehicle Attacks	3
Attacks on Facilities (Buildings and Centers)	0

No	Date	Location	Violation Description	Category and Applicable IHL
1	Mar. 4th, 2024	Nablus	On their way to transport a patient low on oxygen, the Occupation forces denied the crew's access to the location of the patient and targeted the ambulance vehicle with sound and gas bombs.	Denied Access Attack on Vehicle Patient Harassment
2	Mar. 4th, 2024	Nablus	While the crew attempted to evacuate casualties from a building, the Occupation forces delayed the crew's evacuation and movement. Total impediment time: over an hour	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
3	Mar. 4th, 2024	Nablus	On their way to transport a casualty, the Occupation forces used their army vehicle to block the ambulance's way. The Occupation forces also proceeded to threaten the crew at gunpoint before denying their access to the location of the casualty.	Denied Access Crew Harassment Patient Harassment
4	Mar. 7th,	Tubas	While covering confrontations, the Occupation forces forced the crew out of the ambulance	Attack on Vehicle



		T		
	2024		vehicle, forced them to put their hands on their heads and on the ambulance vehicle, and opened up all the doors of the ambulance for inspection.	Crew Harassment
			Total violation time: 8 minutes	
5	Mar. 9th, 2024	Tulkarm	On the crew's way to Nur Shams Refugee Camp, the Occupation forces forced the crew to reverse the ambulance vehicle and fired live ammunition in the area resulting in damages to the ambulance vehicle (shrapnel).	Attack on Vehicle
6	Mar. 11th. 2024	Ateel Village, Tulkarm	Arriving to transport a live ammunition casualty in a critical condition, the Occupation forces initially denied the crew's access to the casualty, forced the crew out of the ambulance vehicle, and inspected the crew. After around 30 minutes, the crew was allowed to transport the casualty. Total impediment time: 37 minutes	Delayed Movement Crew Harassment Patient Harassment
7	Mar. 19th, 2024	Hebron	Arriving to transport a patient who had fallen from a height, the Occupation delayed the crew's access to transport the patient. Total impediment time: 53 minutes	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
8	Mar. 20th, 2024	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	On their way to transport rocket fragment casualties from the camp, the Occupation forces denied the crew's access to the casualties multiple times despite coordination with the ICRC. After 5 failed attempts, the Occupation forces allowed the crew to transport the casualties. Total impediment time: 93 minutes	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
9	Mar. 22nd, 2024	Ousrin Village, Nablus	While transporting live ammunition casualties from Ousrin Village to Nablus, the Occupation forces stopped the ambulance, took pictures of the casualties' IDs, and delayed their movement for 30 minutes. Total impediment time: 30 minutes	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
10	Mar. 24th,	Beit Furik Village,	While transporting a live ammunition casualty from Beit Furik, the Occupation forces detained	Delayed Movement



	2024	Nablus	the ambulance and delayed their movement. After coordinating with the ICRC, the ambulance was allowed to move.	Patient Harassment
11	Mar. 27th, 2024	Hebron	While transporting an elderly patient with a heart condition, the Occupation forces delayed the movement of the ambulance for over 1 hour and 15 minutes.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment

11 Incidents, 24 Violations



April 2024

Incidents	19
Violations	47
Denials	8
Delays	5
Patient Harassments	12
Crew Harassments	12
Vehicle Attacks	10
Attacks on Facilities (Buildings and Centers)	0

Resulting Deaths: 1
Resulting Staff Deaths: 1
Total injured crews: 1

No	Date	Location	Violation Description	Category and Applicable IHL
1	Apr. 8th, 2024	Tayaseer Checkpoint, Tubas (MURDER)	On their way to transport a girl who sustained a critical live ammunition casualty, the Occupation forces denied the ambulance crew's access to transport her despite coordination with the ICRC. As a result of this denial, the girl bled to death.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
2	Apr. 12th, 2024	Al-Faraa Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	Attempting to transport a patient in the camp, the Occupation forces screamed at the crew and opened fire at the ambulance vehicle nearby the ambulance driver, causing damage to the car body, and denied the access of the crew to the patient.	Patient Harassment Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle



3	Apr. 12th, 2024	Al-Faraa Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	While covering confrontations in the camp, the Occupation forces forced the ambulance crew out of the ambulance vehicle, beat the 3-man crew, and inspected them. The Occupation forces also brutally beat one of the volunteers and detained him for nearly an hour and a half.	Crew Harassment
4	Apr. 12th, 2024	Al-Faraa Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	While covering confrontations in the camp, the Occupation forces forced the crew out of the ambulance vehicle and performed a humiliating inspection on one of the ambulance volunteers for nearly 30 minutes, during which he was forced to take his clothes off. The crew was subsequently detained for around an hour and a half while being forced to keep their hands up.	Crew Harassment
5	Apr. 13th, 2024	Duma Village, Nablus	On their way to cover confrontations taking place in the village which resulted in casualties due to attacks by settlers, the Occupation forces initially denied the crew's access to the village. After coordinating with the ICRC, the Occupation allowed the crew to enter the village. Total impediment time: 2 hours	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
6	Apr. 13th, 2024	Duma Village, Nablus	While covering confrontations in the village, the Occupation forces attacked the ambulance vehicle and hit it with their weapons, leading to the shattering of the front windshield's glass. The Occupation forces also attempted to assault the crew.	Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
7	Apr. 13th, 2024	Mughayyer Village, Ramallah	While transporting a live ammunition casualty (bleeding profusely) from Mughayyer, there were Occupation forces present in Turmosayya village on their way to Ramallah; they stopped the crew, detained the vehicle, forced the ambulance driver to step out of the vehicle, and performed an inspection leading to 13 minutes of impediment.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment Crew Harassment Attack on



				Vehicle
8	Apr. 13th, 2024	Sinjel Village, Ramallah	While transporting a live ammunition casualty from Mughayyer village, midway through the road at the entrance of Sinjel village, the Occupation forces stopped the crew and performed an inspection on the ambulance vehicle.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle
9	Apr. 14th, 2024	Zatara Checkpoint, Nablus	On the crew's way from Ramallah to Bidya nearby Zatara checkpoint, Israeli settlers attacked the ambulance vehicle by throwing rocks violently which led to the siren of the vehicle to break.	Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
10	Apr. 14th, 2024	Tubas	On their way to cover confrontations in Ein Al-Bayda village in Tubas, the Occupation forces forced the crew to turn off the ambulance vehicle and to step out, confiscated the keys and phones, and detained one EMS volunteer (his detention lasted 2 days). After 3 and a half hours of detaining the ambulance vehicle, the Occupation forces allowed the crew to go back to the ambulance without reaching their mission.	Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
11	Apr. 19th, 2024	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	On their way to transport a casualty in the camp (he happens to be a PRCS ambulance volunteer), the Occupation forces stopped the crew, forced them out of the ambulance vehicle and inspected it, pinned them on the wall to inspect them, and then denied their access to the camp.	Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle Crew Harassment
12	Apr. 19th, 2024	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	On their way to transport a deceased elderly man, the Occupation forces denied the crew's access to the man and sent them back.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
13	Apr.	Nur Shams	While transporting live ammunition	Delayed



	19th, 2024	Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	casualties from the camp, the Occupation forces detained the ambulance vehicles along with the crews, forced the crews to remove their bulletproof vests (with distinctive emblems) and to get on the ground along with the casualties, brutally inspected the vehicles, beat the crew and insulted them with profanity. An hour later, the crew were allowed to move.	Movement Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle Crew Harassment
14	Apr. 20th, 2024	Beit Furik Village, Nablus	Attempting to transport casualties from Beit Furik, the Occupation forces stopped the crew for nearly 10 minutes near the location of the casualties and initially denied their access. After coordination with ICRC, the crew was granted access to the casualties.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
15	Apr. 20th, 2024	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	On their way to transport a casualty from the camp, the Occupation forces detained the ambulance vehicle and denied the crew's access to the casualty.	Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle
16	Apr. 20th, 2024	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	After transporting a patient to Thabet Thabet Hospital, the Occupation forces detained the ambulance crew at the entrance of the hospital for 30 minutes and took them into the army jeep to ask questions about the transported patient (a 13-year-old child) and were threatened to be arrested.	Crew Harassment
17	Apr. 20th, 2024	Al-Sawiya Village, Nablus	One PRCS EMT volunteer member was martyred while providing medical assistance to the wounded due to settlers' gunfire.	Crew Harassment
18	Apr. 20th, 2024	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	On their way to clear casualties from the camp, the Occupation forces denied the crew's access to the camp.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
19	Apr.	Masafer Bani	Arriving at the location due to settlers'	Denied Access



30th, 2024	Naim, Hebron	attack on farmers in Masafer Bani Naim, the Occupation forces denied the ambulance crew's access to affected farmers in the area and detained them for over an hour with their IDs confiscated. The Occupation forces also threw empty water bottles inside the ambulance vehicle.	Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle Crew Harassment
---------------	--------------	--	--

19 Incidents, 47 Violations



May 2024

Incidents	12
Violations	33
Denials	4
Delays	6
Patient Harassments	8
Crew Harassments	8
Vehicle Attacks	6
Attacks on Facilities (Buildings and Centers)	1

No	Date	Location	Violation Description	Category and Applicable IHL
1	May 4th, 2024	Deir Al- Ghusun Village, Tulkarm	While trying to reach a martyr in a besieged house by the Occupation forces in the village, the Occupation forces denied the crew's access to transport the martyr.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
2	May 4th, 2024	Deir Al- Ghusun Village, Tulkarm	While covering confrontations in the area, the Occupation forces directly targeted ambulance vehicles with tear gas canisters.	Attack on Vehicle Crew Harassment
3	May 6th, 2024	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	The Occupation forces used explosives to destroy PRCS' medical post in Tulkarm Refugee Camp, destroyed its contents, and confiscated EMS kits which rendered the post out of service.	Attack on PRCS Facility



4	May 21st, 2024	Yamoon Village, Jenin	On their way to transport a casualty, the ambulance crew was delayed by the Occupation forces as they forced the crew out of the vehicle and physically inspected them, forcibly removed their bulletproof vests, took their IDs, and inspected the ambulance vehicle. Total impediment time: 15 minutes	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle Crew Harassment
5	May 21st, 2024	Jenin	The Occupation forces denied the crew access to evacuate a child. The crew is still waiting to be granted access.	Denied Access
6	May 21st, 2024	Jenin	On their way to transport a casualty, the crew was stopped by the Occupation forces as they opened fire directly at the ambulance vehicle despite coordination for movement by the ICRC.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle
7	May 21st, 2024	Jenin Refugee Camp	While transporting a martyr, the Occupation forces stopped and inspected the ambulance vehicle, forced the crew out of the vehicle and inspected them physically, confiscated the crew's IDs and inspected the martyr's ID. Total impediment time: 32 minutes	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle Crew Harassment
8	May 21st, 2024	Jenin Refugee Camp	On their way to transport a martyr from inside the camp alongside his father suffering from a nervous breakdown due to witnessing his son's killing, the Occupation forces initially denied the crew's access to the camp and when they managed to transport the father, they forced him out of the vehicle	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment Crew Harassment



			alongside the crew and attacked one of the EMTs. Total impediment time: 8 minutes	
9	May 22nd, 2024	Jenin	On their way to transport a patient suffering from a kidney condition, the Occupation forces delayed the crew by stopping the vehicle, holding the crew at gunpoint, forcing the crew to take some of their clothes off and performing physical inspections on them after confiscating their IDs. Total impediment time: 40 minutes	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle Crew Harassment
10	May 22nd, 2024	Jenin	On their way to transport 2 live ammunition casualties the Occupation forces denied the crew's access while holding them at gunpoint and shining lasers on the crew's bodies.	Denied Access Patient Harassment Crew Harassment
11	May 23rd, 2024	Jenin	While dealing with a casualty on the stretcher the Occupation forces attacked the crew and the patient, held the crew at gunpoint, detained them and forced them to leave the patient on the stretcher on the ground. The Occupation forces later arrested the patient and crushed the stretcher using their bulldozer.	Patient Harassment Crew Harassment
12	May 24th, 2024	Kufr Qaddum Village, Qalqilya	The Occupation forces stopped the ambulance vehicle, forced the crew to turn the engine off, confiscated the keys and inspected the crew's IDs, personal phones and work phones before forcing them to leave. Total impediment time: 10 minutes	Delayed Movement Attack on Vehicle Crew Harassment

12 Incidents, 33 Violations



June 2024

Incidents	20
Violations	50
Denials	14
Delays	5
Patient Harassments	17
Crew Harassments	7
Vehicle Attacks	7
Attacks on Facilities (Buildings and Centers)	

Total Patient Deaths:7

Total Crew Injuries: 1

No	Date	Location	Violation Description	Category and Applicable IHL
1	June 2nd, 2024	Beita Village, Nablus	After transporting a patient to Rafidia Hospital in Nablus, the ambulance team attempted to head back to Beita through Awarta Checkpoint but the Occupation forces denied their movement and sent them back. Afterwards, the ICRC was contacted for coordination but there were no arrangements for movement; a private ambulance was allowed to pass while the PRCS one was denied access and sent back.	Denied Access
2	June 3rd, 2024	Deir Al-Hatab Village, Nablus	On their way to transport a casualty during confrontations, the Occupation forces denied the ambulance team's access to the patient.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
3	June 3rd, 2024	Nitzanei Oz/Gashouri Checkpoint, Tulkarm	On their way to transport a live ammunition casualty, the Occupation forces denied their access at the checkpoint multiple times and shined laser lights at the team.	Denied Access Patient Harassment



4	June 3rd, 2024	Nablus	While dealing with a patient, the Occupation forces got into the ambulance vehicle and moved it from its location.	Attack on Vehicle
5	June 5th, 2024	Khirbat Al- Tayyah Village, Tulkarm	Attempting to transport a casualty from a besieged house in the village, the Occupation forces denied the crew's access to the casualty multiple times and detained him for a few minutes despite coordination with ICRC.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
6	June 6th, 2024	Jenin (MURDER)	The Occupation forces denied the access of the ambulance team to provide first aid and to transport 2 casualties in a critical condition by opening fire near the ambulance vehicle. This denied access led to the death of the casualties.	Denied Access Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle
7	June 9th, 2024	Al-Muraba'a Checkpoint, Nablus	While transporting a critical condition casualty from Urif Village through the checkpoint, the Occupation forces detained the ambulance vehicles for 20 minutes, took pictures of the casualty with their phones, and inspected him. Total impediment time: 20 minutes	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle
8	June 9th, 2024	Al-Muraba'a Checkpoint, Nablus	On their way to cover confrontations in Urif village through the checkpoint, the Occupation delayed the crew by forcing them out of the ambulance vehicle and taking pictures of their IDs. Total impediment time: 20 minutes	Delayed Movement Crew Harassment
9	June 9th, 2024	Awarta and Al-Muraba'a Checkpoint, Nablus (2 locations, 1 incident)	The ambulance vehicle was detained at Awarta despite transporting a casualty in a critical condition (pelvic bleeding). The Occupation forces forced the crew to turn off the vehicle which also obstructed the function of some of the necessary medical devices tied to the casualty. 35 minutes later, the Occupation forces sent the ambulance	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle



			back from Al-Muraba'a where they faced heavy traffic and yet another detention for 20 minutes as the Occupation forces inspected the vehicle and took pictures of the casualty. Total impediment time: 55 minutes	
10	June 10th, 2024	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	Arriving at the location of a live ammunition casualty, the Occupation forces fired preemptive bullets to deny the access of the ambulance team to the casualty.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
11	June 10th, 2024	Al-Faraa Refugee Camp, Tubas (INJURY)	As a volunteer attempted to give first aid to a casualty, the Occupation forces stopped him, brutally beat him, inspected him, confiscated his first aid kit, tore his distinctive emblem from his clothes, and confiscated his protective gear.	Denied Access Patient Harassment Crew Harassment
12	June 10th, 2024	Kufr Nema Village, Ramallah	Upon arrival at the location of critical condition casualties in the village, the Occupation forces blocked the road and denied the ambulance team's access to the casualties.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
13	June 10th, 2024	Kufr Nema Village, Ramallah (SAME CASE, DIFFERENT EMT)	Upon arrival at the location of critical condition casualties in the village, the Occupation forces blocked the road and denied the ambulance team's access to the casualties.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
14	June 10th, 2024	Kufr Nema Village, Ramallah (MURDER)	The Occupation forces denied the access of the ambulance team to transport 4 live ammunition casualties in a critical condition by shining laser lights on the team, holding them at gunpoint, and firing preemptive bullets to force them to clear the area. As a result of this denial of access, the casualties were announced dead.	Denied Access Patient Harassment Crew Harassment



15	June 11th, 2024	Kufr Dan Village, Jenin	The Occupation initially denied the access of the ambulance team to clear a martyr from the village for 15 minutes. After the Occupation forces cleared the area, the ambulance team transported the martyr and on their way the Occupation forces stopped the ambulance and inspected it, forced the crew out of it and performed a physical inspection, and were forced to use another road. Total impediment time: 1 hour 40 mins	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
16	June 11th, 2024	Kufr Dan Village, Jenin (MURDER)	Upon arrival to the location of a casualty that was severely wounded and screaming for help, the Occupation forces opened fire at the ambulance vehicle to deny the access of the crew to the casualty. The Occupation forces also continued to open fire at the casualty which led to his death. 15 minutes later, the Occupation forces cleared the area and the crew transported the martyr. On their way back, the Occupation forces detained the ambulances, physically inspected them before letting them move.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
17	June 25th, 2024	Balata Refugee Camp, Nablus	On their way to transport a patient inside Balata camp while covering confrontations, the Occupation forces denied the crew's access to the location of the patient.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
18	June 25th, 2024	Balata Refugee Camp, Nablus	On their way to Balata camp to cover confrontations, the Occupation forces stopped the crew and initially ordered them to turn the ambulance engine off. After contacting the ICRC, they were sent back and denied access to the camp.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
19	June 25th, 2024	Balata Refugee Camp, Nablus	While covering confrontations in the camp, the Occupation forces approached the crew, forced them to turn the ambulance engine off, and detained the crew for 30 minutes. After coordination with the ICRC, the crew were sent back	Denied Access Patient Harassment Crew



			and denied access to return to the camp.	Harassment Attack on Vehicle
20	June 25th, 2024	Nablus	On the team's way to transport a casualty, the Occupation forces stopped the crew, forced them to turn the ambulance engine off, confiscated its keys and their phones, and detained them before letting them go.	Denied Access Patient Harassment Crew Harassment
				Attack on Vehicle



July 2024

Incidents	14
Violations	40
Denials	12
Delays	1
Patient Harassments	13
Crew Harassments	8
Vehicle Attacks	7
Attacks on Facilities (Buildings and Centers)	

Resulting deaths among patients: 1
Resulting deaths among EMTs: 1

Resulting crew Injuries: 1 (Balata Camp)

No	Date	Location	Violation Description	Category and Applicable IHL
1	July. 1st, 2024	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	On their way to transport casualties from a house that was on fire inside the camp, the Occupation forces stopped the crew at the entrance of the camp and sent them back.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
2	July. 1st, 2024	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	On their way to transport a casualty from the camp, the Occupation forces initially denied the access of the crew to the location of the casualty by screaming at them through speakers. After contacting ICRC, the crew was allowed to access the camp after the Occupation forces left the camp.	Denied Access Crew Harassment Patient Harassment
3	July 5th, 2024	Mount Sbeih (Beita), Nablus	While covering confrontations in the area and maintaining a safe location, the Occupation forces attacked the ambulance vehicle and beat the crew with their rifle before forcing them out	Denied Access Patient Harassment



			of the area.	Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
4	July 23rd, 2024	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	After being informed about the presence of bombing and the presence of a number of injuries and martyrs, PRCS ambulance vehicles were moved to the site. They were prevented from entering the camp from Al-Murabba'a Road, and all entrances to the camp were closed. Coordination was made with the Red Cross but there was no result.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
5	July 24th, 2024	Tubas (MURDER)	On their way to the customs officer's headquarters to attend to two injuries the occupation forces prevented the entry of the ambulance crew for 45 minutes which resulted in the death of one of the injured. Total impeded time: 45 minutes	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
6	July 24th, 2024	Al-Naffar Neighbourhood Qalqilya	On their way to respond to an injury the occupation forces directly fired at the ambulance vehicle resulting in damage to the vehicle and the crew not being able to reach the injured	Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle
7	July 24th, 2024	Qalandiya Refugee Camp, East Jerusalem	On their way to transport casualties from the camp, the Occupation forces stopped the crew, held them at gunpoint, forced them to turn the ambulance engine off and to take off their protective gear displaying the emblem, and performed an inspection. As a result, medical equipment was damaged and the crew was denied access despite coordination with the ICRC.	Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle Crew Harassment
8	July 24th,	Qalandiya Refugee Camp,	On their way to transport casualties from the camp, the Occupation forces	Denied Access



	2024	East Jerusalem	denied the access of the EMTs by using their army vehicles to block the ambulances.	Patient Harassment
9	July 24th, 2024	Artas Village, Bethlehem	On their way to transport a casualty suffering from suffocation, the Occupation forces denied the EMT's access to the area.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
10	July 27th, 2024	Balata Refugee Camp, Nablus (MURDER)	Volunteer paramedic Tamer Saqr was injured while working to evacuate the wounded as a result of the Occupation's shelling in Balata camp, east of Nablus. He later succumbed to his wounds on August 2nd, 2024.	Crew Harassment
11	July 28th, 2024	Balata Refugee Camp, Nablus	While covering confrontations in the camp, the Occupation forces opened fire directly at the ambulance with its crew and denied their access to casualties within the camp.	Patient Harassment Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
12	July 28th, 2024	Balata Refugee Camp, Nablus (Same incident, different vehicle)	While covering confrontations in the camp, the Occupation forces opened fire directly at the ambulance with its crew and denied their access to casualties within the camp.	Patient Harassment Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
13	July 28th, 2024	Balata Refugee Camp, Nablus (Same incident, different vehicle)	While covering confrontations in the camp, the Occupation forces opened fire directly at the ambulance with its crew and denied their access to casualties within the camp.	Patient Harassment Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle



14	July 28th, 2024	Balata Refugee Camp, Nablus (Same incident, different vehicle)	While covering confrontations in the camp, the Occupation forces opened fire directly at the ambulance with its crew and denied their access to casualties within the camp.	Patient Harassment Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
----	-----------------------	--	---	--



August 2024

Incidents	44
Violations	102
Denials	21
Delays	22
Patient Harassments	34
Crew Harassments	16
Vehicle Attacks	12
Attacks on Facilities (Buildings and Centers)	1

Injured Crew: 3

No	Date	Time Stam ps	Location	Violation Description	Category and Applicable IHL
1	Aug. 2nd, 2024	13:25 Till 14:20	Balaa Village, Tulkarm	The ambulance that was sent to respond to casualties in the area where shelling had been taking place was initially denied access to the casualties by the Occupation forces. The ambulance team waited until the Occupation forces withdrew from the area to operate their response. Total impediment time: 55 mins	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
2	Aug. 5th, 2024	18:00 till 19:00	Jenin	The Occupation forces denied the crew's access to a patient suffering from suffocation.	Denied Access Patient Harassment



3	Aug. 6th, 2024	10:00 till 11:00	Jenin (Eastern Side)	The Occupation forces denied the access of the ambulances to respond to humanitarian calls as a result of shelling. The Occupation forces proceeded to fire preemptive bullets to deny the access of the EMTs.	Denied Access Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle
4	Aug. 6th, 2024	12:40 till 16:00	Kufr Qoud Village, Jenin	After receiving reports of the presence of martyrs and casualties in the village, PRCS ambulances headed to the area to transport them but the Occupation forces denied their access. Afterwards, the Occupation forces held the crews at gunpoint and accompanied them to transport the cases. The Occupation forces then forced the casualties and martyrs off of the stretchers and denied the access of the teams yet again.	Denied Access Patient Harassment Crew Harassment
5	Aug. 6th, 2024	09:50 till 11:34	Jenin (Eastern Side) (Different team)	The Occupation forces denied the access of the ambulances to respond to humanitarian calls as a result of shelling. The Occupation forces proceeded to fire preemptive bullets to deny the access of the EMTs.	Denied Access Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle
6	Aug. 10th, 2024	17:00 till 17:10	Beit Furik, Nablus (Different team)	While transporting patients, the Occupation forces stopped the crew at the checkpoint between Beit Furik and Nablus to take pictures of the patients in the ambulances.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
7	Aug. 10th, 2024	17:00 till 17:10	Beit Furik, Nablus (Different tea m)	While transporting patients, the Occupation forces stopped the crew at the checkpoint between Beit Furik and Nablus to take pictures of the patients in the ambulances.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
8	Aug.	17:00	Beit Furik, Nablus	While transporting patients, the	Denied



	10th, 2024	till 17:10		Occupation forces stopped the crew at the checkpoint between Beit Furik and Nablus to take pictures of the patients in the ambulances. The soldiers also threatened the mother of the patient aboard the ambulance telling her the following: "This time your son [has passed through], next time he will be killed"	Access Patient Harassment
9	Aug. 14th, 2024	08:40 till 09:20	Tamoun Village, Southeast Tubas	On their way to transport casualties due to shelling in Tamoun, the Occupation forces prevented the ambulance team from responding to the casualties for 40 minutes.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
10	Aug. 15th, 2024	00:46 Till 01:22	Amman Street, Nablus	On their way to transport a casualty as a result of the Occupation's army vehicle running him over, the Occupation forces denied the access of the crew to the casualty despite coordination with the ICRC.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
11	Aug. 15th, 2024	03:00 till 03:22	Balata Refugee Camp, Nablus	While transporting a casualty due to shelling from the camp, the Occupation forces stopped the ambulance and took pictures of the casualty before allowing the crew to move to Rafidia Hospital.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
12	Aug. 15th, 2024	03:30 till 04:00	Balata Refugee Camp, Nablus	While covering confrontations in the camp, the Occupation forces forced the team to leave the area and denied their access to the area in which shelling was taking place.	Denied Access
13	Aug. 15th,	03:30 till	Balata Refugee Camp, Nablus	While covering confrontations in the camp, the Occupation forces	Denied Access



	2024	04:00	(different team)	forced the team to leave the area and denied their access to the area in which shelling was taking place.	
14	Aug. 22nd , 2024	9:06 till 9:20	Tulkarem Camp	After being informed of martyrs due to occupation shelling of the camp, the team headed to the area in which they were denied entry. After which volunteers within the camp were contacted and they delivered the martyr to ambulances through a different route.	Delayed Movement
15	Aug. 22nd , 2024	9:06 till 9:20	Tulkarem Camp (different team)	After being informed of martyrs due to occupation shelling of the camp, the team headed to the area in which they were denied entry. After which volunteers within the camp were contacted and they delivered the martyr to ambulances through a different route.	Delayed Movement
16	Aug. 22nd , 2024	1:46 till 1:58	Tulkarem Camp	While transporting an injury to the Thabet Thabet hospital, the occupation forces stopped the team from entering for 12 minutes. They then also took the ID of the patient before letting them in.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
17	Aug. 22nd , 2024	8:25 till 8:46	Tulkarem Camp (different team)	After being informed of martyrs due to occupation shelling of the camp, the team headed to the area in which they were denied entry. After which volunteers within the camp were contacted and they delivered the martyr to ambulances through a different route.	Delayed Movement
18	Aug. 28th, 2024	04:05 till 04:40	Thabet Thabet Hospital, Tulkarm	Upon arrival to Thabet Thabet Hospital transporting a casualty in a critical condition (sustained	Delayed Movement



				a bullet to his head and ear), the Occupation forces stopped the ambulance and inspected it, forcing the crew to step out and to stand aside while they interrogated the casualty.	Patient Harassment Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
19	Aug. 28th, 2024	01:05 till 01:18	Al-Isra Hospital, Tulkarm WOMEN'S RIGHTS ISSUE	Upon arrival at Al-Isra Hospital while transporting a woman in labor, the Occupation forces stopped the ambulance at the hospital entrance and forced the crew to step out. The Occupation forces proceeded to force the crew to put their hands up and to lift their shirts while performing an inspection on the vehicle. After 13 minutes elapsed, they were allowed to enter the woman into the hospital.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
20	Aug. 28th, 2024	01:15 till 01:32	Thabet Thabet Hospital, Tulkarm	Upon arrival at Thabet Thabet Hospital transporting a sick patient, the Occupation forces forced the crew out of the ambulance and made them open its doors; they also took the patient's ID for inspection. After 17 minutes elapsed, they were allowed to enter the patient into the hospital.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
21	Aug. 28th, 2024	11:45 till 14:00	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	On their way to transport a patient suffering from chest pain in the camp, the Occupation forces stopped the ambulance for 10 minutes to perform an inspection before allowing them to transport the patient. While transporting the patient, the Occupation forces forced the crew to take the path to the hospital through the "Al-Maslakh" area which was completely destroyed and not	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment Attack on Vehicle



				suitable for mobility. As a result, the ambulance vehicle sank in the mud. Coordination through the ICRC took place in order to bring a new ambulance vehicle to transport the patient but the Occupation forces refused. 2 hours and 15 minutes later, the Occupation forces allowed another ambulance vehicle to enter and the crew transported the patient to the hospital.	
22	Aug. 28th, 2024	12:05 till 14:00	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	An ambulance was dispatched to assist the crew in the above incident and to transport the patient, but the Occupation forces denied their access.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
23	Aug. 28th, 2024	14:30 till 16:33	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	After multiple attempts to reach a kidney dialysis patient within the camp, the Occupation forces allowed the crew to transport the case after 2 hours and 3 minutes. The crew managed to transport a woman in labor with the kidney patient as well.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
24	Aug. 28th, 2024	14:30 till 16:33	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm WOMEN'S RIGHTS ISSUE	The Occupation had denied the access of the crew to the woman in labor mentioned above for 123 minutes. She was then transported by the other crew to Thabet Thabet Hospital.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
25	Aug. 28th, 2024	17:43 till 18:25	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	On the way to transport a patient from the camp, the Occupation forces initially denied the access of the team to the patient. After coordination with the ICRC, the team was able to transport the patient to Thabet Thabet hospital.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
26	Aug. 28th, 2024	02:40 till 03:30	Al-Fara'a Refugee Camp, Tubas	After receiving reports of the presence of many injuries inside the camp, the Occupation forces denied the crews' access to the injuries and they could not be	Denied Access Patient Harassment



				transported.	
27	Aug. 28th, 2024	12:30 till 15:00	Al-Fara'a Refugee Camp, Tubas	On their way to transport casualties in the camp, the Occupation forces denied the access of the crews to transport the casualties by blocking all entrances to the camp. 2 and a half hours later, the crews managed to transport the casualties.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
28	Aug. 28th, 2024	12:30 till 15:00	Al-Fara'a Refugee Camp, Tubas	On their way to transport casualties in the camp, the Occupation forces denied their access to the camp by blocking the roads.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
29	Aug. 28th, 2024	12:05 till 12:35	Al-Fara'a Refugee Camp, Tubas	The Occupation forces raided the EMS point in the camp, forced the crews in it to stand on the wall and confiscated their IDs. The Occupation forces proceeded to detain the director of the point, taking him to another room and beating him. The Occupation forces opened fire inside the point and in the area before exiting.	Crew Harassment Attack on Facility
30	Aug. 28th, 2024	N/A	Jenin	On their way to transport a kidney patient the Occupation forces denied the access of the crew despite coordination with the ICRC. The Occupation forces also inspected the crew while forcing them to lift their clothes.	Denied Access Patient Harassment Crew Harassment
31	Aug. 28th, 2024	21:35 till 15:10 of the next day (17 hours	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	The Occupation forces delayed the access of the crews to transport a martyr in the camp despite coordination with ICRC and the liaison.	Delayed Movement



		of impe dime nt)			
32	Aug. 29th, 2024	14:00 till 16:44	Nur Shams Refugee Camp, Tulkarm	On their way to transport a kidney patient from the camp, the Occupation forces initially denied the access of the crew to the patient. Despite coordination with the ICRC, the Occupation forces used their bulldozers to deny the access of the crews. Around 3 hours later, the crew transported the patient to Thabet Thabet Hospital.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
33	Aug. 29th, 2024	N/A	Jenin	On the way to transport a patient to Jenin Hospital, the Occupation forces fired bullets in the air to stop the crew and insulted them with profanity.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment Crew Harassment
34	Aug. 29th, 2024	10:00 till 10:40	Yamoon Village, Jenin	While transporting a kidney patient from the village to Jenin, the Occupation forces stopped the ambulance to perform an inspection on the vehicle and the crew.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
35	Aug. 29th, 2024	16:00 till 17:00	Jenin	While transporting a patient, the Occupation forces placed constraints on how the crew may transport the patients, giving them only 2 minutes to evacuate her while forcing the ambulance driver to keep his hands up.	Crew Harassment



36	Aug. 29th, 2024	N/A	Jenin	On their way to transport a patient suffering from a snake bite, the Occupation forces stopped the crew and took their IDs for inspection for 20 minutes. Afterwards, the Occupation let the crew move but forced them to take alternative roads, leading to the delayed access to the patient.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment Crew Harassment
37	Aug. 30th, 2024	17:30 till N/A	Eastern Neighborhood, Jenin	On the way to transport a diabetes patient from the area, the Occupation forces opened fire directly at the ambulance (2 bullets) leading to the injury of the 3 crew members including a volunteer doctor. (3 CREW INJURIES)	Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
38	Aug. 30th, 2024	N/A	Jenin	While evacuating a casualty, the Occupation forces pointed green laser lights at the crew and directly targeted the ambulance by opening fire at it, leading to shrapnel damages to the vehicle.	Patient Harassment Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
39	Aug. 30th, 2024	N/A	Jenin	On their way to transport a patient the Occupation forces fired preemptive bullets in the air to force the crew to take another road (much longer road), delaying the crew's access to the patient.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
40	Aug. 30th, 2024	N/A	Jenin WOMEN'S RIGHTS ISSUE	On their way to transport a woman in labor, the Occupation forces forced the crew to leave the area, denying their access to the woman.	Denied Access Patient Harassment



41	Aug. 31st, 2024	N/A	Eastern Neighborhood, Jenin	Arriving at the location of a casualty after coordination through ICRC, the Occupation forces fired preemptive bullets to keep the crew away for two consecutive times. Afterwards, a number of soldiers attacked the ambulance, forcing the crew to turn the engine off and to step out of the vehicle. The crew's IDs were confiscated and they were forced to stand on the wall with their hands up for half an hour while performing a thorough physical inspection on them.	Denied Access Patient Harassment Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
42	Aug. 31st, 2024	04:50 till 04:58	Jenin	The Occupation forces humiliated the crew as they physically inspected them and forced them to strip half naked (top) while performing a thorough inspection of the ambulance.	Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
43	Aug. 31st, 2024	05:00 till N/A	Jenin	On their way to transport an injury from inside a vehicle, the Occupation forces yelled at the crew, insulted them with profanity, forced them out of the ambulance with their hands up, and performed an inspection on the ambulance. The crew was denied access to the injury.	Denied Access Patient Harassment Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
44	Aug. 31st, 2024	N/A	Jenin WOMEN'S RIGHTS ISSUE	On their way to transport a woman in labor, the Occupation forces stopped the ambulance and forced the crew to step out to perform an inspection. The Occupation forces confiscated	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment



	some of the medical equipment inside of the ambulance and they forced the crew to lift their clothes.	Crew Harassment Attack on Vehicle
--	---	-----------------------------------

September 2024

Incidents	22
Violations	46
Denials	9
Delays	10
Patient Harassments	16
Crew Harassments	10
Vehicle Attacks	
Attacks on Facilities (Buildings and Centers)	1

Staff Injury: 1

No	Date	Time Stam ps	Location	Violation Description	Category and Applicable IHL
1	Sep. 2nd, 2024	11:15 to 12:45	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	After receiving the report of the presence of an elderly patient inside the camp, coordination had to be made for a rickshaw to transport her due to the Occupation's destruction of the streets impeding ambulances. The process delayed her transport by an hour and a half.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment



2	Sep. 2nd, 2024	12:09 till 12:31	Al-Salam Roundabout, Tulkarm	On their way to transport reported injuries due to the Occupation opening fire at a vehicle, the Occupation forces denied the crew's access to the location of the incident. After the Occupation forces cleared the area, it was found that there were no injuries after all.	Denied Access
3	Sep. 3rd, 2024	22:57 till 23:19	Thabet Thabet Hospital, Tulkarm	Transporting young men that had been beaten by the Occupation forces, the Occupation forces stopped them at the entrance of the hospital, forced the crew and the patients to step out, and took the patients' IDs for inspection. Afterwards, the Occupation forces allowed them to enter the hospital; however, they continued to hold 2 of the patients to continue inspecting them.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment Crew Harassment
4	Sep. 4th, 2024	03:13 till 03:38	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	After receiving reports of patients suffering from suffocation inside the camp, the crew embarked on a coordinated mission to transport the patients alongside the civil defense (fire department). The crew and the civil defense were stopped at the entrance of the camp for inspection for 25 minutes before the Occupation forces allowed them to enter. During the inspection, the Occupation forces forced the crew to step out of the ambulance and took their IDs.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment Crew Harassment
5	Sep. 4th, 2024	23:10 till 23:30	Thabet Thabet Hospital, Tulkarm	While transporting 4 patients suffering from suffocation due to a fire inside Tulkarm Refugee Camp, the Occupation forces stopped the crew at the entrance of Thabet Thabet Hospital. The Occupation forces requested the	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment



				IDs of the patients (they didn't have them) and interrogated one of the patients before allowing them to enter the hospital.	
6	Sep. 4th, 2024	17:35 till 18:44	Ein Sinya Village, Ramallah	On their way to Tulkarm, the Occupation forces stopped the two-man crew and asked the ambulance driver to turn the engine off. The driver explained that the engine was too hot to turn off, and the Occupation forces responded with brutality. They turned the engine off, confiscated the keys, handcuffed the EMTs, and brutally beat them. They arrested one of them and let the driver go.	Crew Harassment
7	Sep. 5th, 2024	01:40 till 02:20	Al-Faraa Refugee Camp, Tubas	On their way to transport a live ammunition casualty, the Occupation forces denied the crew's access to the casualty multiple times and forced the crew to leave the area. The Occupation forces proceeded to open fire at the casualty before using him as a human shield on their bulldozer and taking him to an unknown location.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
8	Sep. 9th, 2024	16:13 until 17:21	Tulkarm	The Occupation forces besieged the PRCS Tulkarm EMS Center forcing all the EMTs to remain inside, performed a thorough inspection of the center while the EMTs' IDs remained confiscated. Afterwards, the Occupation forces interrogated some EMTs and detained 2 of them for 3 hours.	Crew Harassment Attack on Facility
9	Sep. 10th, 2024	14:35 till 16:05	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	On their way to transport a martyr from the camp, the Occupation forces delayed the crew for an hour. Upon	Delayed Movement



				transporting him, the Occupation	
				forces delayed them another half hour.	
10	Sep. 10th, 2024	14:55 till 15:55	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	On their way to deal with an unconscious patient inside the camp, the Occupation forces held the crew at gunpoint, screamed at them and forced them to leave, denying their access to the patient.	Denied Access Patient Harassment Crew Harassment
11	Sep. 10th, 2024	18:10 till 18:25	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	On their way to transport an elderly patient suffering from high blood pressure, the Occupation forces fired preemptive bullets on the ground in front of the ambulance to deny the crew's access to the patient.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
12	Sep. 10th, 2024	19:00 till 19:35	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	On their way to transport a patient inside the camp, the Occupation forces fired preemptive bullets on the ground in front of the ambulance to deny the crew's access to the patient. After some time, the crew slowly advanced towards the patient and successfully transported her to Thabet Thabet Hospital.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
13	Sep. 10th, 2024	N/A	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	Due to the number of cases present inside the camp, a two-man team in a DRM vehicle alongside an ambulance were sent to support a rickshaw that was dispatched to evacuate patients. Upon arrival at the location within the camp, the Occupation forces detained the two-man team, blindfolded them, beat them, and handcuffed them; this situation remained for over 17 hours before they were released. During this time they were deprived of food, drink, and access to a toilet.	Crew Harassment



		I	T	T	
				The ambulance team was also arrested but released 19 hours later.	
14	Sep. 11th, 2024	16:00 until 18:07	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	After coordination with the ICRC for the crew to enter the camp to transport a patient, the Occupation forces detained the ambulance and the crew for over 2 hours. Despite a second coordination taking place, the crew was not allowed to transport the patient and was sent back from the camp.	Denied Access Crew Harassment Patient Harassment
15	Sep. 12th, 2024	06:00 until 15:00	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	On their way to transport a deceased patient from the camp, the Occupation forces delayed the crew for 9 hours despite coordination with the ICRC.	Delayed Movement
16	Sep. 12th, 2024	19:05 until 19:25	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	The Occupation forces denied the crew's access to transport a patient from inside the camp despite coordination with the ICRC.	Denied Access Patient Harassment
17	Sep. 12th, 2024	10:30 until 12:20	Tulkarm Refugee Camp	Despite coordination with the ICRC twice in a row, the Occupation forces initially denied the crew's access to a sick patient inside the camp. The Occupation forces forced the patient to walk outside of the camp in order for the crew to transport her.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
18	Sep. 12th, 2024	14:30 until 15:00	Thabet Thabet Hospital, Tulkarm	Upon arrival at the entrance of Thabet Thabet Hospital while transporting a 4-year-old girl, the Occupation forces delayed the crew for 30 minutes. After coordination with the ICRC, the crew was allowed to enter the child into the hospital.	Delayed Movement Patient Harassment
19	Sep. 18th, 2024	01:58 until 02:55	Amman Street, Nablus	On their way to clear a sick child from the area, the Occupation forces assaulted the crew by	Delayed Movement



				beating them and humiliating them with profanity to deny their access. After coordination with the ICRC, the crew was able to clear the child to Rafidia Hospital.	Patient Harassment Crew Harassment
20	Sep. 24th, 2024	00:00 till 00:20	Bethlehem	Attempting to respond to injuries due to a car accident, the Occupation forces assaulted an EMT by beating and pushing him and asked him to leave the scene.	Denied Access Patient Harassment Crew Harassment
21	Sep. 29th, 2024	07:00 till 10:00	Aqqaba Village, Tubas	Upon arrival at a besieged home in the village with a casualty inside, the Occupation forces denied the access of the crew to transport the casualty while holding them at gunpoint.	Denied Access Patient Harassment Crew Harassment
22	Sep. 29th, 2024	07:00 till 08:38	Aqqaba Village, Tubas	While transporting a casualty, the Occupation forces initially arrested the casualty from the ambulance vehicle. Around 2 hours later, the Occupation forces released the casualty and the crew successfully transported him.	Denied Access Patient Harassment